<B

CITY OF NOVATO
CALIFORNIA

PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes

Monday, August 12, 2024 - 7:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Commission Present: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and
Tiernan

Commission Absent: Commissioner Derby

Staff Present: Deputy Community Development Director Steve Marshall and Senior
Planner Brett Walker

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded by
Commissioner Crockett, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to amend and
approve the final agenda, including continuing item F.2. to the Commission’s meeting of
September 9, 2024, as requested by staff.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioner Derby

C. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE

D. CONSENT ITEMS - NONE

E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE
F. PUBLIC HEARINGS

F.1. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER V OF THE NOVATO MUNICIPAL
CODE REGARDING CONDOMINIUM CONVERSIONS AND CHAPTER XIX OF THE
NOVATO MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND DENSITY
BONUS UNIT CALCULATIONS, LOW BARRIER NAVIGATION CENTERS AND
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING, FARMWORKER (AGRICULTURAL) HOUSING, AND SINGLE-

Page | 1 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

ROOM OCCUPANCY FACILITIES; AND FINDING THE AMENDMENTS ARE EXEMPT
FROM ADDITIONAL CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) REVIEW
PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 15162 AND SECTION 15061(b)(3).

Senior Planner Walker presented the staff report.

Commissioner Crockett asked for clarification regarding the status of design standards associated
with the proposed amendments to the Municipal Code.

Senior Planner Walker indicated the review process will include determining compliance with the
City’s objective design standards for residential projects as most of the amendments address
projects with two or more dwellings.

Commissioner Crockett inquired about the 12 unit threshold for agricultural worker housing.

Senior Planner Walker described the differences between the potential project types allowed for
agricultural worker housing, noting up to 36 beds or rooms in a single building or 12 individual
dwellings, such as typical or manufactured homes.

Commissioner Engdahl asked if the proposed amendments impacted any pending projects or apply
retroactively.

Deputy Director Marshall stated the amendments don’t impact current projects nor would apply
retroactively.

Commissioner Heath asked if the amendments had to be reviewed by the State similar to accessory
dwelling unit ordinances.

Senior Planner Walker said the State laws associated with the amendments do not direct agencies
to submit ordinances to the State.

Deputy Director Marshall noted the City would acknowledge the new ordinances in its annual
housing report to the Department of Housing and Community Development.

Commissioner Tiernan asked if Homeward Bound’s facility represented a low barrier navigation
center.

Deputy Director Marshall summarized the operation of a low barrier navigation center. He did not
believe Homeward Bound’s facility operated in a similar manner.

Commissioner Tiernan asked if the city operated homeless camp near Lee Gerner Park could be a
low barrier navigation center.

Senior Planner Walker commented that low barrier navigation centers are usually run by non-profit
organizations.

Commissioner Tiernan inquired about single room occupancy facilities and affordability.

Senior Planner Walker indicated the affordability would likely be dictated by the operator, in
compliance with State regulations.

Commissioner Tiernan asked how the rental vacancy rate is determined for the condominium
conversion ordinance.

Page | 2 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Senior Planner Walker referenced a recent ABAG report indicating Marin’s rental vacancy rate at
approximate 2%; this vacancy rate is possibly determined with data from the Census Bureau’s
American Community Survey.

Commissioner Tiernan commented that group homes of 6 or fewer residents are not subject to
agency review.

Senior Planner Walker confirmed this circumstance noting an agency can regulate group homes of
7 or more residents.

Deputy Director Marshall noted that regulating group living arrangements involve constitutional
issues for agencies, such as how many unrelated persons my alive in a home, or who constitutes
a family, and so on. This leads agencies to rely on State law for group homes.

Chair Havel opened the public hearing.
No member of the public desired to address the Commission.
Chair Havel closed the public hearing.

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Tiernan and seconded by
Commissioner Dawson, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to adopt the
draft resolutions (5) recommending the City Council amend the Novato Municipal Code
regarding affordable housing and density bonus unit calculations, low barrier navigation
centers and supportive housing, farmworker (agricultural) housing, single-room occupancy
facilities, and residential condominium conversions.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Engdahl, Havel, Heath, and Tiernan
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioner Derby

F.2. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER XIX OF THE NOVATO
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS TO COMPLY
WITH CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 66310 - 66342 AND FINDING
THE AMENDMENTS ARE EXEMPT FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) PURSUANT TO CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 15282(h)

Chair Havel noted Item F.2. had been continued to the Commission’s meeting of September 9,
2024. However, he offered an opportunity for public comment on this item recognizing some
members of the public may have attended the meeting to comment on Item F.2.

No members of the public commented on ltem F.2.
G. GENERAL BUSINESS - NONE

H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS

Page | 3 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Deputy Director Marshall noted the Planning Commission’s meeting of August 26 might
be cancelled.

Commissioner Tiernan inquired about three AB 2011 projects on Grant Avenue, the
occupancy status of Residence Inn, and the progress of the project proposed at 1787
Grant.

Deputy Director Marshall noted one project on Grant Avenue has been approved and the
other two are scheduled for a hearing before the City Council on August 27. He stated
furniture and fixtures are being installed at Residence Inn indicating the hotel is close to
receiving an occupancy clearance. He noted the project at 1787 Grant was recently
presented to the Design Review Commission and will proceed to a future hearing before
the Planning Commission.

l. ADJOURNMENT

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 07:45 PM.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning
Commission meeting of November 18, 2024.

[Steve Marshall/
Steve Marshall, Deputy Community Development Director

Page | 4 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

